



An Exelon Company

Richard G. Webster, Jr.
Vice President

Telephone 215.841.4000
Fax 215.841.6208
www.peco.com
dick.webster@peco-energy.com

PECO
Regulatory Policy and Strategy
2301 Market Street
S15
Philadelphia, PA 19103

RECEIVED

SEP 12 2016

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION
SECRETARY'S BUREAU

September 12, 2016

Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Commonwealth Keystone Building
400 North Street
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265

Re: PECO Energy Company (PECO) Revised 2016-2018 Universal Service and Energy Conservation Plan and Supplement No. 179 to Tariff Gas – Pa PUC No. 2 effective October 14, 2016, Docket No. M-2015-25-7139

Dear Secretary Chiavetta:

Pursuant to the Commission's Final Order at Docket No. M-2015-2507139, PECO Energy Company is hereby filing Supplement No. 179 to Tariff Gas Pa. P.U.C. No. 2, bearing an effective date of October 14, 2016.

The specific purpose of the filing addresses the implementation of the new CAP rate design based on a Fixed Credit Option (FCO) in accordance with the methodology contained in PECO's revised Universal Service and Energy Conservation Plan for 2016-2018.

In support of this filing we are providing the following:

Attachment 1 – Revised Gas CAP Tariff

Concurrent with this filing, PECO is also filing similar CAP FCO changes to its Electric Service tariff.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter and please direct any questions regarding the above to Richard Schlesinger, Manager, Retail Rates at (215) 841-5771.

Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary
September 12, 2016
Page 2

Sincerely,



Copies to: C. Walker-Davis, Director, Office of Special Assistants
P. T. Diskin, Director, Bureau of Technical Utility Services
D. P. Hosler, Director, Bureau of Audits
R. A. Kanaskie, Director, Bureau of Investigation & Enforcement
Office of Consumer Advocate
Office of Small Business Advocate
McNees, Wallace & Nurick
Pennsylvania Utility Law Project
Community Legal Services, Inc.
Eckert Seamans Cherin & Mellott LLC
Office of Administrative Law Judge
Office of Mediation
Bureau of Consumer Services

RECEIVED

SEP 12 2016

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION
SECRETARY'S BUREAU

Attachment 1

PECO ENERGY COMPANY

GAS SERVICE TARIFF

COMPANY OFFICE LOCATION

2301 Market Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19101

For List of Communities Served, See Page 2.

Issued September 12, 2016

Effective October 14, 2016

ISSUED BY: C. L. Adams - President & CEO
PECO Energy Distribution Company
2301 MARKET STREET
PHILADELPHIA, PA. 19101

NOTICE.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Index of Communities Served.....	2 ²
How to Use Loose-Leaf Tariff.....	3
Definition of Terms and Explanation of Abbreviations.....	4 ⁴
RULES AND REGULATIONS:	
1. The Gas Service Tariff.....	7 ²
2. Service Specifications.....	8
3. Customer's Installation.....	9 ⁴
4. Application for Service.....	10
5. Credit.....	11 ⁵
6. Service-Supply Facilities.....	12 ⁶
7. Extensions.....	12 ⁶
8. Rights-of-Way.....	13
9. Introduction of Service.....	13
10. Company Equipment.....	14 ⁴
11. Tariff Options on Applications for Service.....	15 ²
12. Service Continuity.....	16 ¹
13. Customer's Use of Service.....	21
14. Measurement.....	21
15. Tests.....	22 ¹
16. Payment Terms.....	23 ⁵
17. Termination by the Company.....	25 ³
18. Unfulfilled Contracts.....	25 ³
19. Cancellation by Customer.....	26
20. General.....	26
21. Gas Choice Program Enrollment and/or Switching.....	27 ¹
22. Usage Data.....	27 ¹
23. Affiliated Marketer Standards of Conduct.....	28
24. Requests for Energy Efficiency Information.....	31 ²
25. Creditworthiness of Natural Gas Supplier (NGS) Serving High Volume Transportation Customers.....	31 ²
STATE TAX ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE.....	32 ²¹
UNIVERSAL SERVICE COST RECOVERY MECHANISM.....	33 ¹⁴
SALES SERVICE COSTS - ("SSC") Section 1307(f).....	34 ⁶⁸
GAS PROCUREMENT CHARGE.....	36A ¹⁷ , 36B ⁷
BALANCING SERVICE COSTS ("BSC").....	37 ⁶⁸
MIGRATION RIDER.....	39 ¹
TRANSITION SURCHARGE - SECTION 1307 (a).....	40 ¹²
CONSUMER EDUCATION CHARGE (CEC).....	40A ²
PROVISION FOR THE TAX ACCOUNTING REPAIR CREDIT (TARC).....	40B
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE (DSIC).....	40C-40H
RATES:	
Rate GR General Service - Residential.....	41 ²²
Rate CAP Customer Assistance Program.....	42 ³
Rate GC General Service - Commercial and Industrial.....	43 ¹²
Rate OL Outdoor Lighting.....	44 ⁷
Rate L Large High Load Factor Service.....	45 ¹⁵
Rate MV-F Motor Vehicle Service-Firm.....	46 ¹¹
Rate MV-I Motor Vehicle Service-Interruptible.....	47 ⁵
Rate IS Interruptible Service.....	49 ¹
Rate TCS Temperature Controlled Service.....	51 ⁶
Gas Transportation Service - General Terms and Conditions.....	53 ¹⁰
Rate TS-I Gas Transportation Service - Interruptible.....	58 ⁷
Rate TS-F Gas Transportation Service-Firm.....	59 ⁷
Rate CGS - City Gate Sales Service.....	60 ³⁵
Rate NGS - Negotiated Gas Service.....	61A ¹ , 61B ¹
RIDERS:	
Applicability Index of Riders.....	62 ³
Casualty Rider.....	63
Construction Rider.....	63
Excess Off-Peak Use Rider.....	64 ⁹
Neighborhood Gas Pilot Rider.....	64A, 64B
Receivership Rider.....	65
Temporary Service Rider.....	65
Customer Assistance Program (CAP) Rider.....	66 ³³ , 67 ²

LIST OF CHANGES MADE BY THIS SUPPLEMENT

CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (CAP) RIDER – 33rd Revised Page No. 66 and 2nd Revised Page No. 67

CAP Rider revised due to the implementation of the CAP Fixed Credit Option (FCO) program in accordance with the Universal Service and Energy Conservation Plan at Docket No. M-2015-2507139.

Customer Assistance Program (CAP) Rider

AVAILABILITY:

To payment-troubled customers who are currently served under or otherwise qualify for Rate GR (excluding multiple dwelling unit buildings consisting of two to five dwelling units). Customers must apply for the rates contained in this rider and must demonstrate annual household gross income at or below 150% of the Federal Poverty guidelines. Customers, will be subject to a \$25 monthly bill minimum (\$10 for non-heating customers) and will not be eligible to obtain Competitive Natural Gas Supply. Based on the applicable level of income, number of household members, and their historical usage CAP customers will receive a Fixed Credit Option ("FCO") based upon that individual household's need. The details of the FCO calculation can be found in the PECO Universal Service and Energy Conservation Plan at Docket No. M-2015-2507139. (C)

DISCOUNT LEVELS: The Company will modify the level of discounts every quarter to adjust for changes in the Customer's usage as well as any Rates changes which may have occurred. (C)

CERTIFICATION/VERIFICATION Prior to enrollment in the CAP Rider, and then again every two years, customers must verify, to PECO's satisfaction, that their household income level meets the "Availability" standards set forth in this Rider. Customers being considered for the CAP Rider will be required to:

- Provide information sufficient to demonstrate to PECO their household income level.
- Waive certain privacy rights to enable PECO to effectively conduct the above certification process.
- Apply for and assign to PECO at least one energy assistance grant from the Commonwealth.
- Participate in various energy education and conservation programs facilitated by PECO.

PECO may, at its sole discretion, supplement this verification process by using data from Commonwealth or federal government programs which demonstrate the income eligibility of its customers. Such data may come from a customer's participation in, or receipt of benefits from, the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program, Aid to Families with Dependent Children, Food Stamps, Supplemental Security Income, and Medicaid. Information available from the Pa. Department of Revenue may also be used where appropriate to expedite the process.

MINIMUM CHARGE. The minimum charge per month will be \$25, or if the customer can demonstrate exclusive non-house heating use the minimum charge will be \$10.

ARREARAGE.

Customers who qualify and are enrolled in CAP will have their pre-program arrearage ("PPA") forgiven if the customer pays his / her new, discounted CAP bill on time and in full each month. With every full and on-time monthly payment, one-twelfth of the PPA will be forgiven. If the customer develops any in-program arrearage while on the CAP Rate -- that is, if the customer does not pay the entire outstanding balance -- then preprogram arrearage forgiveness will not resume until the first month in which the full outstanding balance is paid (C)

(C) Denotes Change

This page intentionally left blank

Supplement No. 179
Gas-Pa. P.U.C. No. 2

Deleted: 8

PECO ENERGY COMPANY

GAS SERVICE TARIFF

COMPANY OFFICE LOCATION

2301 Market Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19101

For List of Communities Served, See Page 2.

Issued September 12, 2016

Effective October 14, 2016

Deleted: August 31

Deleted: September 1,

ISSUED BY: C. L. Adams - President & CEO
PECO Energy Distribution Company
2301 MARKET STREET
PHILADELPHIA, PA. 19101

NOTICE.

PECO Energy Company

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Index of Communities Served..... 2²
 How to Use Loose-Leaf Tariff..... 3
 Definition of Terms and Explanation of Abbreviations 4⁴
RULES AND REGULATIONS
 1. The Gas Service Tariff..... 7²
 2. Service Specifications..... 8
 3. Customer's Installation..... 9⁴
 4. Application for Service..... 10
 5. Credit..... 11⁵
 6. Service-Supply Facilities..... 12⁶
 7. Extensions..... 12⁵
 8. Rights-of-Way..... 13
 9. Introduction of Service..... 13
 10. Company Equipment..... 14⁴
 11. Tariff Options on Applications for Service..... 15²
 12. Service Continuity..... 16¹
 13. Customer's Use of Service..... 21
 14. Measurement..... 21
 15. Tests..... 22¹
 16. Payment Terms..... 23⁵
 17. Termination by the Company..... 25³
 18. Unfulfilled Contracts..... 25³
 19. Cancellation by Customer..... 26
 20. General..... 26
 21. Gas Choice Program Enrollment and/or Switching..... 27¹
 22. Usage Data..... 27¹
 23. Affiliated Marketer Standards of Conduct..... 28
 24. Requests for Energy Efficiency Information..... 31²
 25. Creditworthiness of Natural Gas Supplier (NGS) Serving High Volume Transportation Customers..... 31²
 STATE TAX ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE..... 32²¹
 UNIVERSAL SERVICE COST RECOVERY MECHANISM..... 33¹⁴
 SALES SERVICE COSTS - ("SSC") Section 1307(f)..... 34⁶⁸
 GAS PROCUREMENT CHARGE..... 36A¹⁷, 36B⁷
 BALANCING SERVICE COSTS ("BSC")..... 37⁶⁸
 MIGRATION RIDER..... 39¹
 TRANSITION SURCHARGE - SECTION 1307 (a)..... 40¹²
 CONSUMER EDUCATION CHARGE (CEC)..... 40A⁷
 PROVISION FOR THE TAX ACCOUNTING REPAIR CREDIT (TARC)..... 40B
 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT CHARGE (DSIC)..... 40C-40H
RATES:
 Rate GR General Service - Residential..... 41²²
 Rate CAP Customer Assistance Program..... 42³
 Rate GC General Service - Commercial and Industrial..... 43¹²
 Rate OL Outdoor Lighting..... 44⁷
 Rate L Large High Load Factor Service..... 45¹⁵
 Rate MV-F Motor Vehicle Service-Firm..... 46¹¹
 Rate MV-I Motor Vehicle Service-Interruptible..... 47⁵
 Rate IS Interruptible Service..... 49¹
 Rate TCS Temperature Controlled Service..... 51⁶
 Gas Transportation Service - General Terms and Conditions..... 53¹⁰
 Rate TS-I Gas Transportation Service - Interruptible..... 56⁷
 Rate TS-F Gas Transportation Service-Firm..... 59⁷
 Rate CGS - City Gate Sales Service..... 60³⁵
 Rate NGS - Negotiated Gas Service..... 61A¹, 61B¹
RIDERS:
 Applicability Index of Riders..... 62³
 Casualty Rider..... 63
 Construction Rider..... 63
 Excess Off-Peak Use Rider..... 64³
 Neighborhood Gas Pilot Rider..... 64A, 64B
 Receivership Rider..... 65
 Temporary Service Rider..... 65
 Customer Assistance Program (CAP) Rider..... 66³¹, 67²

Deleted: 8
 Deleted: Sixty-Ninth
 Deleted:
 Deleted: Eighth

Deleted: 2
 Deleted: 1
 Deleted: August 31
 Deleted: September

Supplement No. 179 To
Gas-Pa. P.U.C. No. 2
One Hundred Seventy Revised Page No. 1A
PECO Energy Company _____ Superseding One Hundred Sixty-Ninth Revised Page 1A

Deleted: 8

Deleted: Sixty-Ninth

Deleted: _____

Deleted: Eighth

LIST OF CHANGES MADE BY THIS SUPPLEMENT

CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (CAP) RIDER – 33rd Revised Page No. 66 and 2nd Revised Page No. 67
CAP Rider revised due to the implementation of the CAP Fixed Credit Option (FCO) program in accordance with the Universal Service and Energy Conservation Plan at Docket No. M-2015-2507139,

Deleted: 2nd

Deleted: Changes CAP Discount Factors reflecting quarterly PGC rate change. ¶
¶

Issued September 12, 2016

Effective October 14, 2016

Deleted: August 31

Deleted: _____

Deleted: September

PECO Energy Company

**Supplement No. 179 To
Tariff Gas Pa. P.U.C. No. 2
Second Revised Page No. 67
Superseding First Revised Page No. 67**

- Deleted: 7
- Deleted: First
- Deleted:
- Deleted: Original

This page intentionally left blank

issued September 12, 2016

Effective October 14, 2016

- Deleted: November 10, 2008
- Deleted:
- Deleted: January 1
- Deleted: 09